
Agenda Pack republished 15 September 2017, 
to correct a minor inconsistency in 
appendix 1 of Item 2

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health Decision Day

Date and Time Thursday, 21st September, 2017 at 3.00 pm

Place Mitchell Room, Elizabeth II Court, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

NON-KEY DECISIONS

1. SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES GRANT AWARD  (Pages 3 - 12)

To consider a report of the Director of Adults’ Health and Care regarding 
grant awards to voluntary and community organisations. 

2. TRANSFORMATION TO 2019 – REVENUE SAVINGS PROPOSALS  
(Pages 13 - 46)

To consider a report of the Director of Adults’ Health and Care and the 
Director of Corporate Resources outlining the detailed savings proposals 
that have been developed as part of the Transformation to 2019 
programme. 

3. APPOINTMENTS TO HEALTH ORGANISATIONS (OUTSIDE BODIES)  
(Pages 47 - 48)

To consider a report of the Director of Transformation and Governance 
on appointments to Health Organisations (Outside Bodies). 

Public Document Pack



4. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
following item of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the public were present during this item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraphs 3 and 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, and further 
that in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, 
for the reasons set out in the report.

5. CATERING SERVICE FOR WILLOW COURT NURSING HOME, 
ANDOVER  (Pages 49 - 56)

To consider an exempt report of the Director of Adults’ Health and Care 
regarding a catering service for Willow Court Nursing Home, Andover. 

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 21 September 2017

Title: Supportive Communities Grant Award 

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care

Contact names:
Samantha Hudson, Head of Communities and Wellbeing
Peter Stokes, Commissioning Officer

Tel:   01962 845605  
01962 845389 Email:

Samantha.Hudson@hants.gov.uk  
Peter.Stokes@hants.gov.uk

1. Executive Summary 
1.1. The purpose of this paper is to seek approval for the delegated authority to 

the Director of Adults’ Health and Care to make grant awards to the 
voluntary and community organisations outlined in this report as part of the 
Supportive Communities Programme. 

1.2. The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) contributes to improving 
people’s quality of life. The grants programme is one of the ways in which 
County Council supports the sector to support people to live fuller more 
independent lives and to reduce the demand for County Council services. 

1.3. This paper sets out: 

 the background to the Supportive Communities Programme; 

 the background to the Adults’ Health and Care grant programmes;

 the details of the grants to be awarded and the expected benefits 
that will be derived from those grants.

2. Background
2.1. The aim of the Supportive Communities Programme is to increase 

community self-sufficiency, help build inclusive, strong communities and 
promote individual independence. This will help to reduce, delay and/or 
divert demand on Adults’ Health and Care. To achieve this aim the 
Supportive Communities Programme has a number of workstreams that 
include promoting information and advice activities and  supporting  
organisations that can develop new, innovative ways to enable communities 
to become better connected have been identified as key areas for 
development if the programme is to be successful.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:Samantha.Hudson@hants.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Stokes@hants.gov.uk


2.2. In 2016/17 Adult’s Health and Care made changes to its grants programme, 
as outlined in Decision Report 7183. These actions were developed in 
consideration of Adult Services responsibilities under the Care Act 2014 (in 
particular the Wellbeing duty). Furthermore organisations receiving grants 
need to demonstrate that they can deliver services that best meet the 
specific outcome areas identified by Adult Services for the grant period in the 
pursuit of strengthening community resilience and reducing demand for 
costlier adult social care services.

2.3. In 2017/18 grants have already been awarded in-line with this approach, as 
outlined in Decision Report 8052. The grants recommended for funding in 
this report will support delivery of the Supportive Communities Programme. 
Sections 3, 4, and 5 of this paper describe the three grants for which 
approval is sought.  

3. Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant
3.1. The Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant will enable an umbrella 

organisation to provide advice and support to a network of smaller local 
organisations whose purpose is to:

i) Support vulnerable individuals in the community so that those 
individuals  maintain their independence leading to a reduced  
demand for council services. 

ii) To work with these neighbourhood organisations so that they 
understand local needs and develop support to meet those needs. 

3.2 The role of the organisation awarded the grant will be to promote, support 
and develop neighbourhood level groups to thrive by helping them provide 
safe, sustainable support to vulnerable individuals and provide advice to 
enable people to utilise their resources and assist them to develop support 
that meets the needs of their community.

3.3 There are over 120 neighbourhood level groups currently operating within 
Hampshire providing a wide range of services, for example befriending, 
social activities and transport assistance. Last year these groups supported 
around 27,000 Hampshire residents undertaking 166,700 interventions with 
over 4000 volunteers. This expected level of activity was supported by a 
grant of £100,000 to an umbrella organisation, with no direct County Council 
funding being provided to the individual groups. These interventions can, 
divert and delay the requirement for social care services. An evaluation1 of 
the neighbourhood level groups showed strong improvements for 
individuals, in particular in greater use of community resources and 
increased independence. The organisation selected for funding will help 
support these existing groups to ensure they continue to best meet the 
needs of vulnerable residents in line with priorities of the County Council, 
through best practice, training and development.

1 Kuyer, J., NEF Consulting (June 2017) Hampshire Supportive Communities Evaluation 
Framework  

Page 4



3.2. We have identified areas of Hampshire where there are gaps and where it 
would be beneficial to either increase the capacity of existing neighbourhood 
level groups, or to develop new groups. The successful applicant will also 
need to demonstrate how they will develop capacity or new groups in areas 
of need. 

4. Timebanking Development Grant
4.1. Timebanking is a way for people and organisations to share skills with others 

in their community and be rewarded for it in time, rather than with money. 
For every hour of time a bank member gives they will ‘deposit’ one time 
credit, for which they can ‘withdraw’ by receiving an hour of another 
members time for an activity when in need themselves. All activities are 
valued equally. Timebanking is recognised as an effective way of re-
establishing neighbourliness and informal volunteering, and can achieve 
savings of over £1,300 per timebank member for the wider community, 
including social care2. Volunteering can also benefit the volunteer, keeping 
people active, promoting physical and mental health and wellbeing, and 
strengthen local connections3.

4.2. The Timebanking Development Grant will enable an organisation to further 
develop timebanking across Hampshire so that they ensure the involvement 
and supporting of vulnerable people by increase reciprocal support in 
communities, as well as developing confidence, social inclusion and 
improved wellbeing. The successful applicant will work with six fledgling 
timebanks (located in Totton, Andover, Whitehill and Bordon, Hart & 
Rushmoor, Leigh Park and Basingstoke) to and support the development of 
at least five additional timebanks elsewhere in Hampshire. 

4.3. Timebanking is recognised as an effective way of re-establishing 
neighbourliness and informal volunteering in ways that can often support 
vulnerable residents directly, or indirectly via families and friends. Initial 
development work of the six fledgling timebanks has estimated the minimum 
number of direct beneficiaries to be 600 people across all six banks. In 
addition it is expected that 90 groups or organisations will benefit, alongside 
3000 indirect beneficiaries. These fledgling banks have enabled us to 
demonstrate that timebanking can be set up in Hampshire. Further grant 
funding is required to build on this and to evaluate the impacts of 
timebanking on individuals, communities and County Council services.

4.4. In other parts of the United Kingdom, timebanking has been used to develop 
home from hospital services to provide informal support such as cooking 
meals, doing shopping or running errands averting the demand for  paid 
care. The County Council intends to explore the development of similar 
services though the developed timebanks supported by this grant.

2 Department of Health, HM Government,  (11 June 2012) Caring For Our Future: reforming care 
and support  - white paper
3 Van Willigen, M., (2000) ‘Differential benefits of volunteering across the life course’, Journal of 
Gerontology: Social Sciences, 55B, S308–S318

Page 5



5. Autism Support Grant
5.1. The Autism Support Grant will fund services to support people with autism 

before, during and post diagnosis with advice, guidance, signposting/support 
through referrals from the diagnostic services across Hampshire. The 
advice, guidance, signposting and support will be tailored to the individual 
with the aim of promoting and supporting their independence wherever 
possible. The outcomes will include preventing escalation of situations into 
crisis for those within the diagnosis process, and providing support linked to 
the diagnostic assessment with recommendations to support the uniqueness 
of each person’s individual autism needs. 

5.2. The successful applicant will be expected to work closely with the lead 
organisation of the County Council funded Serendipity Support Group  and 
to help with the  recruitment of volunteers for further Serendipity Groups, 
where there are currently identified gaps within Hampshire. Serendipity 
Groups are user-led social groups for those with Asperger’s and High 
Functioning Autism. Many people with autism are severely disadvantaged by 
the difficulties they have with social interaction, communications and sensory 
issues and can easily become isolated from their community. The 
Serendipity Groups are designed to prevent this isolation. 

5.3. The applicant will also provide ‘light touch’ support, as required, to 
accompany individuals to attend initial taster sessions to community based 
services and activities, to enable the person to feel more confident in 
attending independently.  The services provided by the Autism Support 
Grant will help reduce isolation through supporting social needs and goals, 
and improve home life by providing stability for people with autism and their 
families through telephone support to people with autism, their families and 
paid carers/professionals. The successful applicant will also have to market 
and advertise the other autism services available in Hampshire to maximise 
their uptake and benefit as many as possible. Consequently these services 
will prevent, reduce and divert demand on County Council services.

6. Supportive Communities Grants Process
6.1. All grant applications received are considered in relation to how well they 

link with current Adult Services priorities, in particular:

 Maximising independence and inclusion;

 Right support in the right place at the right time for users;

 Vulnerable people are protected;

 Delivering a high quality, cost-effective service to the vulnerable people 
of Hampshire.

6.2. Applications had to demonstrate how they would work with people aged 18 
years and over at risk of social isolation and diminished independence. 
There is a list of agreed priority groups, as specified in Decision 7183. 

6.3. Applicants are required to demonstrate their ability to help people with 
various levels of need through a wide range of solutions, starting with the 

Page 6



question ‘what makes us healthy?’, rather than the deficit-based question 
‘what makes us ill?’ These approaches are based on creating and sustaining 
broadly based support in the community, outside the traditional boundaries 
of health and social care services, to promote good health and wellbeing as 
well as strong social connections. An asset-based approach takes account 
of how people live and how they can be enabled to realise their potential.

6.4. Those organisations that meet  the criteria, including safeguarding 
responsibilities  and who can comply with mutually agreed reporting and 
monitoring requirements will be considered for grant funding by a panel of 
Adults’ Health and Care staff, a service user  representative or carers 
representative, who in addition have confirmed they are aware of their 
responsibilities regarding safeguarding adults.  Where an application is not 
successful, advice and guidance in seeking alternative funding will be 
offered should an organisation request it.

7.  Delegated Authority
7.1.  Applications for the Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant and the 

Timebanking Development Grant closed in early August.  This means that   
there has not been sufficient time to conclude the selection process and 
make recommendations regarding the organisations to be awarded the 
grants for approval at the September Executive Member Decision Day. 

7.2. Therefore it is proposed that the Executive Member for Adult Social Care 
and Health delegates authority to the Director of Adults’ Health and Care, in 
consultation with the Executive Member to award the Neighbourhood Care 
and Support Grant and the Timebanking Development Grant.

7.3. The existing grant for autism support ends in November 2017. Applications 
for the Autism Support Grant close in early October.  To ensure that autism 
support is maintained continuously it will be necessary to select an 
organisation to receive the Autism Support Grant funding before the planned 
November Executive Member Decision Day.  It is proposed that the 
Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health delegates authority to 
the Director of Adults’ Health and Care in consultation with the Executive 
Member, to award the Autism Support Grant.

7.4. Approval cannot be delayed until the planned November Executive Member 
Decision as similar services receive grant funding from the County Council 
currently and there would be a risk to the continuity of these services.  This 
could lead to vulnerable people not receiving support, which could lead to an 
increase of their care needs.

8. Financial Implications
8.1. The grant proposals in this report will commit additional expenditure totalling 

up to a maximum of £220,000 commencing in 2017/18. The payment of 
these grants will be profiled £160,000 in 2017/18 and £60,000 in 2018/19. 
Subject to approval of this report the total grants committed for payment in 

Page 7



2017/18 and 2018/19 will remain within the current annual budget envelope 
for the Supportive Communities Programme. 

8.2. Payments of all grant awards set out in this report will be made in two 
instalments for every year of the grant award. The first payment of the award 
will be made on signature of the grant agreement, with payment of the 
remainder of the grant subject to the receipt of the organisations annual 
accounts for the previous financial year. All grant agreements have 
conditions that enable the County Council to require repayment of the award 
or any part of it if it remains unspent at the end of the grant period, or if there 
is a material breach of the grant agreement.

9. Equalities 
9.1. It is for the Executive Member as decision maker to have due regard to the 

need to: eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act and advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

9.2. The grants awarded under the Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant and 
the Autism Support Grant will have a neutral impact on groups with 
protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010, as although the 
name of the grant pots has changed it is expected that grants awarded to 
organisations will be broadly similar to current levels of funding. As a result it 
is likely that a similar number of individuals in each the protected 
characteristics will benefit, with older people and disabled people being of 
particular benefit. However the Timebanking Development Grant is expected 
to increase the number of timebanks operating in Hampshire and as a result 
this is expected to have a positive impact on older people and disabled 
people.

10. Risk Assessment and Management
10.1. The provision of grants to voluntary and community sector organisations by 

statutory bodies always presents a degree of risk.  Specific risks that 
statutory bodies are required to manage include voluntary and community 
organisations accepting funding without providing any activity; organisations 
not delivering the service as expected; and there being an under spend on 
the expected activity.  This applies to all grants; however larger grants 
represent a potentially higher risk to the County Council.

10.2. A number of mechanisms have been employed successfully over a number 
of years to mitigate and alleviate these risks.  These include nominating a 
Liaison Officer from the County Council whose responsibility is to monitor 
how the grant is spent, specifying within the grant agreement that the grant 
is ‘restricted’ funding for the provision of the specified activity only and 
phasing the payment of grants over the course of the award duration..

10.3. In order to evaluate the impact of the grant award and to provide evidence 
on which decisions can be made about whether to continue with similar 

Page 8



grants in the future, an appropriate evaluation methodology will be agreed 
and specified within the grant agreement and will be undertaken during the 
grant year, monitored by the Liaison Officer. 

10.4. All organisations awarded a grant sign a declaration stating they accept that 
grant funding can only be awarded for the given period and no commitment 
exists from the County Council to continue funding after this time, or in 
subsequent years.

11. Recommendations
11.1. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health gives 

delegated authority to the Director of Adults’ Health and Care, in consultation 
with the Executive Member, to award a grant(s) to an organisation selected 
as part of the Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant process, up to a 
maximum of £100,000, for a period of 1 year from October 2017.

11.2. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health gives 
delegated authority to the Director of Adults’ Health and Care, in consultation 
with the Executive Member, to award a grant(s) to an organisation selected 
as part of the Timebanking Development Grant process, up to a maximum of 
£70,000, for a period of 1 year from November 2017.

11.3. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health gives 
delegated authority to the Director of Adults’ Health and Care, in consultation 
with the Executive Member, to award a grant(s) to an organisation selected 
as part of the Autism Support Grant process, up to a maximum of £50,000, 
for a period of 1 year from November 2017. 

Page 9



Integral Appendix A

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

yes

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

no

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Reference Date

Supportive Communities Grant Award 

Supportive Communities Grant Award

Supportive Communities Programme Partnership 
Grants 

Adult Services Grant Programme 

8052

7719

7644

7183

17 January 2017

21 September 2016

20 July 2016

18 January 2016

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 10



Integral Appendix B

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:
1.1 Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act;
Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who 
do not share it;
Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
i) The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 

relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
ii) Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
iii) Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 

public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

1.2 Equalities Impact Assessment:
The grants awarded under the Neighbourhood Care and Support Grant and the 
Autism Support Grant will have a neutral impact on groups with protected 
characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010, as although the name of the 
grant pots has changed it is expected that grants awarded to organisations will be 
broadly similar to current levels of funding. As a result it is likely that a similar 
number of individuals in each the protected characteristics will benefit, with older 
people and disabled people being of particular benefit. However the Timebanking 
Development Grant is expected to increase the number of timebanks operating in 
Hampshire and as a result this is expected to have a positive impact on older 
people and disabled people.

2.1 Impact on Crime and Disorder:
The County Council has a legal obligation under Section 7 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to consider the impact of all decisions it makes on the 
prevention of crime.  The proposal in this report aims to improve the safety of 
vulnerable Hampshire residents and reduce the risk of crime occurring.

Page 11



Integral Appendix B

3.Climate Change:
a) How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 

consumption?
The Adults’ Health and Care Grant Programme proposes to support local 
organisations providing services within local communities.  This reduces the need 
to travel and therefore reduces both the carbon footprint and energy 
consumption.
b) How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate 

change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts?
The proposal recognises the need to adapt to climate change and issues will be 
addressed throughout the period of the grant award through the monitoring of 
outcomes.

Page 12



.

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 21 September 2017

Title: Transformation to 2019 – Revenue Savings Proposals

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health & Care and Director of Corporate 
Resources – Corporate Services

Contact name: Gary Smith and Dave Cuerden

Tel:   
01962 847402
01962 847473

Email:
Gary.smith@hants.gov.uk
Dave.cuerden@hants.gov.uk 

1. Executive Summary
1.1. The purpose of this report is to outline the detailed savings proposals for 

the Adult Social Care budget that have been developed as part of the 
Transformation to 2019 Programme.  The combined total departmental 
Transformation to 2019 savings requirement is £120m, with £55.9m of this 
required from the Adult Social Care budget.

1.2. The report also provides details of the Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) 
that have been produced in respect of these proposals and highlights, 
where applicable, any key issues arising from the public consultation 
exercise that was carried out over the summer and how these have 
impacted on the final proposals presented in this report.

1.3. The proposals align with the Department’s continued emphasis on 
positively maximising the independence of individuals so that they are able 
to do more for themselves and draw from wider community support.  The 
Council will continue to invest in service models that enable this. 

1.4. The Executive Member is requested to approve the detailed savings 
proposals for submission to Cabinet and then full County Council in 
October, recognising that there may be further public consultation for some 
proposals.

2. Contextual information
2.1. Members will be fully aware that the County Council has been responding 

to reductions in public spending, designed to close the structural deficit 
within the economy, since the first reductions to government grants were 
applied in 2010/11 and then as part of subsequent Comprehensive 
Spending Reviews.

Page 13

Agenda Item 2

mailto:Gary.smith@hants.gov.uk
mailto:Dave.cuerden@hants.gov.uk


.

2.2. Reductions in government grant together with inflationary and service 
pressures, notably within social care areas, have created an average 
County Council budget gap of around £50m per annum, meaning that circa 
£100m has needed to be saved every two year cycle.

2.3. This position has been exacerbated following the changes announced in 
the Local Government Settlement in February 2016 which provided 
definitive figures for 2016/17 and provisional figures for the following three 
years to 2020.  The settlement included a major revision to the 
methodology for distributing Revenue Support Grant (RSG) which had a 
major impact on shire counties and shire districts and also reflected a clear 
shift by the government in council tax policy.

2.4. Consequently, even after allowing for council tax increases over the 
settlement period, the County Council’s forecast gap for the two years to 
2019/20 is £140m, and after allowing for savings arising from prudent 
internal treasury management and other measures of £20m, targets were 
set for departments based on a reduction of approaching 19% in cash 
limited spend.

2.5. One of the key features of the County Council’s well documented financial 
strategy and previous savings programmes has been the ability to plan well 
in advance, take decisions early and provide the time and capacity to 
properly implement savings so that a full year impact is derived in the 
financial year that they are needed.

2.6. This approach has also meant that savings have often been implemented 
in anticipation of immediate need and this has provided resources both 
corporately and to individual departments to fund investment in capital 
assets and to fund further change and transformation programmes to 
deliver the next wave of savings.  This approach has enabled the County 
Council to cushion some of the most difficult implications of the financial 
changes.

2.7. Whilst this has been a key feature of previous cost reduction programmes it 
was recognised without doubt that the Transformation to 2019 (Tt2019) 
Programme, the fourth major cost reduction exercise for the County 
Council since 2010, would be significantly more challenging than any 
previous transformation and efficiency programme against the backdrop of 
a generally more challenging financial environment and burgeoning service 
demands.

2.8. Departments have looked closely at potential opportunities to achieve the 
required savings and unsurprisingly the exercise has been extremely 
challenging because savings of £340m have already been driven out over 
the past seven years, and the fact that the sheer size of the 19% target 
requires a complete “re-look”; with previously discounted options having to 
be re-considered.  It has been a significant challenge for all Departments to 
develop a set of proposals that, together, can enable their share of the 
Tt2019 Programme target to be delivered.

2.9. The opportunity assessment and planning work has confirmed the sheer 
complexity and challenge behind some of the proposals as a consequence 

Page 14



.

of which in a number of areas across the County Council significantly more 
than two years will be required to develop plans and implement the specific 
service changes.

2.10. The cashflow support required to manage the extended delivery timetable 
will in the most part be met from departmental cost of change reserves and 
further contingency options to cover any shortfall will be considered as part 
of the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) that will be 
reported in October.

2.11 The County Council undertook an open public consultation called Serving 
Hampshire – Balancing the Budget which ran for six weeks between 3 July 
– 21 August 2017. The consultation was widely promoted to stakeholders 
and residents and asked for their views on ways the County Council could 
balance its budget in response to continuing pressures on local 
government funding, and still deliver core public services. 

2.12 Responses to the consultation will help to inform the decision making by 
Cabinet and Full Council in October and November of 2017 on options for 
delivering a balanced budget up to 2019/20, which the Authority is required 
by law to do.

2.13 In addition, Equality Impact Assessments have also been produced for all 
of the detailed savings proposals and these together with the broad 
outcomes of the consultation and the development work on the overall 
Transformation to 2019 Programme have helped to shape the final 
proposals presented for approval in this report.

3. Budget Update
3.1. The savings targets that were set for departments were based on forecasts 

produced over the summer of 2016 and included a wide range of variable 
assumptions to arrive at the total predicted gap of £140m.

3.2. Last year the Local Government Finance Settlement provided definitive 
figures for 2016/17 and provisional figures for local authorities for the 
following three years to aid financial planning for those authorities who 
could ‘demonstrate efficiency savings’.  The County Council has now had 
its 2017/18 figures confirmed as part of the budget setting process and 
following acceptance by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) of the County Council’s Efficiency Plan for the period 
to 2019/20 the expectation is for minimal change for 2018/19 and 2019/20. 
No figures have been published beyond this date.

3.3. The offer of a four year settlement provided greater but not absolute 
funding certainty.  However, following the Queen’s speech to Parliament in 
June this year, the planned changes to implement 100% business rate 
retention by 2019/20 are effectively suspended with no indication of when 
this might be resumed, although the Government has just invited 
applications for pilots to operate during 2018/19, the detail of which will be 
considered in due course.  Work to carry out a fair funding review is set to 
continue as it does not require legislation.

Page 15



.

3.4. An updated MTFS will be presented to Cabinet in October and then Full 
Council in November and the County Council will continue to review the 
assumptions on an ongoing basis in light of information that is made 
available.

4. Transformation to 2019 – Departmental Context
4.1. The Tt2019 Adult Social Care budget reduction of £55.9m alone is a 

significant challenge.  This position needs to be seen within the context of 
the County Council’s wider budgetary position, outlined above, continued 
adult social care demand pressures and the financial challenges being 
experienced by NHS organisations which have a direct bearing on social 
care pressures and vice versa. 

4.2. The underlying financial position remains challenging in the extreme.  
Demand continues to increase.  This includes both numbers of 
vulnerable/frail older people, (particularly those aged 85 or above set to rise 
markedly over the coming 3-5 years), and sustained increases in the 
numbers and cost of children with disabilities and complex needs 
transitioning to adulthood.  Further, other factors such as regulation and the 
national living wage to name but two are impacting in terms of increasing 
inflationary pressures.  It is estimated that these pressures will exceed 
£30m by 2019/20.

4.3. The pressures outlined above are not unique to Hampshire.  They are 
representative of the position nationally.  To help address this, the 
Government have recently announced changes to the funding that local 
authorities receive for Adult Social Care.  The changes include:

 additional flexibility with the adult social care precept,

 an additional non-recurrent grant in 2017/18,

 an additional non-recurrent Improved Better Care Fund (IBCF) 
allocation to be received over three years commencing in 2017/18.

4.4. Whilst welcome, the above do not address the long term increase in 
demand as they are all only one off increases in funding.  Combined, they 
do provide the opportunity to invest in transformational programmes to 
reduce costs in the long term to provide some mitigation.  This is still 
unlikely to be sufficient, on its own, to off-set both the increase in demand 
and support the achievement of £55.9m savings necessary as part of the 
Tt2019 programme. 

4.5. It follows therefore that the Department faces a significant funding cliff edge 
by 2020/21, when the above grants have ceased.  By 2020/21 the only 
additional funding available is through the IBCF allocation, announced as 
part of the Autumn 2015 Local Government Spending Review.  For this 
reason the Adult Social Care budget, in the medium term, remains reliant 
on the availability of Corporate support up to a maximum of an additional 

Page 16



.

£10m per year outlined within the MTFS presented to Full Council in July 
2016.

4.6. The Adults’ Health and Care Department faces, in addition to the Tt2019 
budget reduction of £55.9m, a further £4m of recurring Public Health 
savings which need to be achieved by 2019/20.  By 2019/20 the County 
Councils’ Public Health grant will be £49.5m after total cash reductions of 
£8.3m since 2015/16.  These budget reductions are being taken forward on 
a different timescale from Tt2019 and will report to the Executive Member 
for Public Health.

4.7. The challenge for the Department is clear in that it must deliver the right 
quality of care for clients, at a rate that is affordable, whilst transforming the 
mechanisms and channels by which care is provided.  Achieving the 
Tt2019 Adult Social Care budget reduction of £55.9m will be extremely 
challenging and cannot be achieved without impact on frontline services.

4.8. That said, the Department has a strong track record which has seen it 
deliver on previous budget reductions.  It has achieved this through seeking 
to maximise service transformation, efficiencies and innovation, alongside 
service reductions.  A key component of this has been the sustained 
investment by the County Council which has enabled significant building 
developments and the exploitation of new technology which is 
demonstrated by the following:

 Revenue investment of £3.3m in telecare annually

 Capital investment of £45m currently delivering an increase in the 
capacity of available Extra Care provision for older people in the county

 Capital investment of £35m currently delivering greater volumes of 
available supported living accommodation for younger adults.

4.9. This will continue to be the Department’s approach and change will remain 
a constant as the Department builds on the achievements and outcomes of 
the Transformation to 2017 (Tt2017) savings programme.  In many 
instances, this will mean building on tried and tested existing initiatives as 
well as continuing with positive innovations and investments – circa £17.6m 
of savings from the proposed Tt2019 programme are a direct continuation 
of the principles and practices adopted within Tt2017.  Forging new ways to 
enable greater independence across client groups, further expanding the 
use of Technology Enabled Care (including Telecare), continued 
investment in Extra Care/alternative accommodation and changing social 
care practice will all play their part and are having a significant positive 
impact on the quality of life of adult social care clients and others.

4.10. At the same time there are areas of existing policy and practice where the 
Department will need to redouble its efforts to engage with and manage the 
expectations of the public and service users as to what the Department can 
and cannot offer.  Tt2019 will, inevitably, mean re-defining the 
Department’s relationship with the community and where necessary 
adapting policies further.

Page 17



.

4.11. The approach the Department is taking to opportunities for Tt2019 is to 
focus on:

 Prevention: Developing a strengthened prevention strategy to reduce and/or 
contain, in the face of the continued pressures, service demand growth across 
a wide range of business areas

 Independence: Increase the number of clients and prospective clients living 
independently of formal adult social care services and reduce the overall net 
costs of care

 Productivity: Improve efficiency and productivity of the Department’s 
operations

 External spend: Increase outcomes and service efficiency arising from 
commissioned activity.

4.12. The joint dependencies with the NHS cannot be ignored and will affect the 
achievability of opportunities in a number of ways.  Close working and 
integration with the NHS locally continues to be critical to the future in 
specific areas of joint business activity and there is evidence of good recent 
progress being made in this regard.

4.13. Overall, the Department’s estimated savings are made up of four main 
blocks.  These four blocks comprise:

 Health and social care integration
 Living Independently (older people and physical disabilities)

 Learning disabilities, Children’s to Adults transitions, mental 
health and Social Inclusion and

 Working Differently.

4.14. These are all underpinned by a further block which involves a concerted 
effort to reinvigorate the Department’s demand management and 
prevention activities – this will provide the foundation for the other blocks, 
rather than directly achieve savings.  A summary of each of these blocks is 
included in the following paragraphs.

4.15. Tt2019 will require the Department to continue to be effective in terms of its 
demand management and prevention work.  Containing and then 
reducing demand for services will be key to living within a reducing budget 
envelope.  Within this area of focus will be initiatives to help potential 
service users and their families and friends to do more for themselves 
wherever and whenever possible, partly assisted by improved access to 
better advice and information including how technology can play an 
important role in maintaining and/or increasing independence.  
Undoubtedly there will be a range of things that the Department will look to 
take forward in this area with partners, providers, community groups and 
volunteers all aimed at enabling residents to live healthier and more 
independent of social care paid for support, for longer.

Page 18



.

4.16. The biggest block of savings relates to the £18.9m savings opportunities 
associated with operational efficiencies, improved client outcomes and 
reduced service demand pressures linked to health and social care 
integration.  This relates to the use of the increased IBCF in order to 
continue to support a wide range of existing services and joint / integrated 
service delivery instead of reducing or removing them altogether.  The 
intention is to use the resource to protect core adult social care services 
that would otherwise see their funding reduced by £18.9m by 2019.  The 
planning assumption remains that the Department’s existing commitment to 
integration with health partners will continue and that system wide 
performance targets will be achieved using the totality of the Department’s 
budget.

4.17. The next biggest savings area, some £18.3m, comes from Living (more) 
Independently as the Department looks to further transform its services for 
older people and people with physical disabilities.  There will be a focus on 
strengths based approaches, intermediate care and reablement to improve 
the health and wellbeing of residents so that increasing numbers can 
remain in their own homes, living as independently as possible.  This 
approach will aim to see lower or reduced needs following a short-term 
intervention, enabling, wherever possible, people to return home with 
appropriately sized care packages as opposed to being transferred to 
residential and nursing care provision at current levels of demand.  These 
proposals are entirely in keeping with the wishes of people the Department 
supports; staying living independently in their own homes for as long as 
possible.  Greater use of technology and focused investment in short-term 
provision and in Extra Care will be important enablers as will new and 
improved relationships with care providers alongside more flexible and 
modern commissioning and procurement approaches.  Consideration 
would also be given to income from client contributions and in-house 
efficiencies.  In addition, consideration would be given to consult on the 
future of day services in favour of potential alternative and more 
individualised provision.

4.18. The third biggest saving area represents £14.6m.  The living (more) 
independently theme is continued in the Learning Disabilities and Mental 
Health work areas as the Department looks to continue the successful 
journey started ahead of Tt2017 to move increasingly away from 
institutional, long-term care settings and move instead to support people 
into more flexible, more modern ways of living that provide much greater 
independence for service users with learning disabilities and/or mental 
health needs.  This will include more supported living, creating more 
opportunities for employment including supported employment and 
enabling people to do more for themselves, including developing 
opportunities for people to find a greater level of support from within their 
local communities.  As part of this, work will continue with Children’s 
Services and with providers to manage costs and outcomes for young 
people transitioning to adult social care services.

4.19. A separate piece of work will focus on engaging with district council 
partners to redesign Social Inclusion services for people who are 

Page 19



.

homeless or at risk of homelessness to release savings when the current 
service comes to an end in March 2019.  A Health and Adult Social Care 
Select Committee Member working group is being established to 
specifically assist in undertaking this vital area of work.

4.20. The final block of savings covers £4.1m of savings and relates to the entire 
workforce and how from top to bottom across the Department each and 
every member of staff can be enabled to work ‘differently’, e.g. more 
productively, more efficiently and more effectively.  This will enable the 
Department to operate, over time, with fewer staff but in a manner that is 
least disruptive to service users.  A range of opportunities exists within this 
strand of the overall programme, the most obvious of which is how the 
Department looks to optimise the use of technology in every day working 
from work scheduling and assessment work for social workers, to flexible 
working involving less travel and fewer offices for everyone.  This work 
area will also consider end-to-end business processes so that unnecessary 
cost can be driven out with minimal impact for residents.  Areas of existing 
business will be considered for automation and some areas of business 
activity may cease (where an existing process can be achieved differently 
or it provides no customer value).

4.21. As stated, whilst an emphasis will be placed on positively achieving these 
budget savings, there remains significant risks.

4.22. It is recognised that difficult service decisions/changes will need to be 
made across the programme to achieve the decreased departmental 
expenditure.  There is a risk that a reduction in the Department’s service 
offer may reduce, or may be perceived to reduce, client choice.  The 
Department is mindful of its legal duties and eligible needs will be met.  The 
Department will continue to closely monitor the actions of other local 
authorities and legal judgements.  The impact of decisions on service users 
is carefully considered and mitigated where possible.  It should be noted 
that adult social care case law turns upon circumstances in individual cases 
and as such some areas of risk are by their nature less predictable.

4.23. Progress and success will require a very thoughtful and careful 
engagement approach across a myriad of different but important 
stakeholders.  Some of these have already been referred to above.  
Additionally, there is a significant work programme ahead which would 
require a huge focus on how the Department works with people who use 
services and a determination to undertake positive engagement to develop 
co-produced solutions with a broad range of representative groups.  

4.24. There is also much ongoing work with the NHS at acute hospital, 
community provider and Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) level.  The 
Department looks to take forward integration opportunities where they can 
add most value and to improve and simplify existing joint working - to take 
out cost and importantly to improve the service user experience.  It is 
recognised that there will continue to be external scrutiny on discharge 
performance and how the County Council uses the IBCF to protect and 
enhance social care provision across Hampshire.

Page 20



.

4.25. The culture change challenges for staff within the Department and for 
County Council staff more widely, remain significant.  Continuing to build on 
the strengths based approach adopted at the beginning of Tt2017 and 
improving its focus and results will be fundamentally important.  Creating 
the right conditions for staff at all levels to perform consistently effectively 
across all staff groups and all teams will continue to challenge leaders and 
senior managers grappling with higher levels of service demand and 
reducing budgets and staff.  Operating effectively will require all front line 
staff to engage positively with service users, with families and with 
community groups/volunteers.  The resetting of public understanding and 
the development of a compelling narrative to support a broader cultural 
change and set of expectations that our public understands, accepts and 
agrees with has to run through everything the Department does.

4.26. Technology has been mentioned in numerous places within this report and 
is another key enabler to a successful future.  There are clear opportunities 
to build upon the very successful assistive technology arrangement that the 
County Council has enjoyed with Argenti over recent years and with the 
present contractual arrangements due to conclude in the summer of 2018, 
there is work to do in terms of what might follow.  As described earlier, 
technology is going to be increasingly important in terms of the prevention 
and reducing reliance upon ‘traditional’ forms of social care support in 
favour of increased social networking and remote support available to 
people.  Increasing the ability of the County Council and the desire of the 
public in relation to maximising private pay opportunities is largely untested 
territory which will be fully tested over the coming period.

4.27. Some of these issues are as much an opportunity as a challenge.  There 
also remains a significant amount of both Tt2017 and Tt2019 programmes 
which will have a positive effect on the levels of independence and the 
quality of life of the Department’s clients and prospective clients.

5. Summary Financial Implications
5.1. The savings target that was set for Adult Social Care was £55.9m and the 

detailed savings proposals that are being put forward to meet this target 
are contained in Appendix 1.

5.2. The Department is currently forecasting to achieve savings of up to £49.0m 
of the £55.9m required by 2019/20, the year by which the Tt2019 budget 
reductions will come into effect.  The remaining £6.9m is expected to follow 
in 2020/21.  In cashflow terms, the Department will cover this £6.9m from 
cost of change reserves in 2019/20, along with any planned delayed 
delivery which is to be expected in a programme of this magnitude.  The 
Department will continue to focus on safely achieving as much savings as 
early as possible.

5.3. It is forecast, based on current planning assumptions that the Department 
will have sufficient cost of change reserves to cover this requirement in 
2019/20.  The Department has been able to top up its cost of change 

Page 21



.

reserve through some early delivery of Tt2017 savings and is planning to 
add further to this through early delivery of some Tt2019 savings.  

6. Workforce Implications
6.1. Appendix 1 also provides information on the estimated number of 

reductions in staffing as a result of implementing the proposals.
6.2. As a consequence of the proposals, if agreed, it is envisaged that there 

could be an overall reduction in the adult social care workforce in the region 
of 150 full time equivalent posts which are likely to come primarily from 
non-direct care related service areas.  The exact posts and teams 
potentially affected will not be known until significant further work is 
undertaken.  This would focus on identifying opportunities to make current 
processes more efficient, and on the continuing deployment of modern 
technology.

6.3. Any reductions in staffing levels would be managed in a sensitive and 
considerate way, through natural turnover, redeployment and voluntary 
means wherever possible

7. Serving Hampshire-Balancing the Budget consultation
7.1. As part of its prudent financial strategy, the County Council has been 

planning since February 2016 how it might tackle the anticipated deficit in 
its budget by 2019/20.  As part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
which was last approved by the County Council in July 2016, initial 
assumptions have been made about inflation, pressures, Council Tax 
levels and the use of reserves.  Total anticipated savings of £140m are 
required and of this sum, savings targets to the value of £120m were set for 
departments as part of the planning process for balancing the budget.

7.2. The proposals in this report represent suggested ways in which 
departmental savings could be generated to meet the target that has been 
set as part of the Transformation to 2019 Programme.  Individual Executive 
Members cannot make decisions on strategic issues such as Council Tax 
levels and use of reserves and therefore, these proposals, together with the 
outcomes of the Serving Hampshire - Balancing the Budget consultation 
exercise outlined below, will go forward to Cabinet and County Council and 
will be considered in light of all the options that are available to balance the 
budget by 2019/20.

7.3. The County Council undertook an open public consultation called Serving 
Hampshire – Balancing the Budget which ran for six weeks from 3 July – 21 
August. The consultation was widely promoted to stakeholders and 
residents through all available channels, including online, via the County 
Council’s website; Hampshire media (newspapers, TV and radio); and 
social media. Hard copies were also placed in Hampshire libraries and 
alternative formats, such as easy read, were made available on request. 

7.4. The Balancing the Budget consultation asked for residents’ and 
stakeholders’ views on ways the County Council could balance its budget 

Page 22



.

in response to continuing pressures on local government funding, and still 
deliver core public services. Specifically, views were invited on several high 
level options as follows:

 reducing and changing services; 

 introducing and increasing charges for some services;

 lobbying central government for legislative change;

 generating additional income;

 using the County Council’s reserves;

 increasing Council Tax; and

 changing local government arrangements in Hampshire. 

7.5. A total of 3,770 responses were received to the consultation. The key 
findings from consultation feedback are as follows:

 The majority of respondents (65%) agreed that the County Council should 
continue with its financial strategy.

 Responses were relatively evenly split between those who tended to 
support changes to local services and those who did not (50% agreed, 
45% disagreed and 5% had no view either way).

o Of all the options, this was respondents’ least preferred.
 Two thirds of respondents (67%) agreed that the County Council should 

raise existing charges or introduce new charges to help cover the costs of 
running some local services.  

 Over half of respondents (57%) agreed that the County Council should 
lobby the Government to vary the way some services are provided, and 
enable charging where the County Council cannot levy a fee due to 
statutory restrictions. 

 Of all the options presented, generating additional income was the most 
preferred option.

 On balance, the majority of respondents (56%) agreed that the County 
Council should retain its current position not to use reserves to plug the 
budget gap. 

o Of all the options, this was respondents’ second least preferred.
 Respondents would prefer the County Council to continue with its plans to 

raise Council Tax in line with Government policy (50% ranked this as their 
preferred approach to increasing Council Tax). 

o Of all the options, increasing Council Tax was respondents’ second 
most preferred.

 More than half of those who responded (64%) agreed that the County 
Council should explore further the possibility of changing local 
government structures in Hampshire.

Page 23



.

7.6. Executive Lead Members and Chief Officers have been provided with the 
key findings from the consultation to help in their consideration of the final 
savings proposals. In particular, as a result of the feedback on service 
issues, the County Council will seek wherever possible to:

 minimise reductions and changes to local services, and continue to 
ensure that resources are prioritised on those who need them most, i.e. 
vulnerable adults and children;

 increase and introduce charges to cover the costs of some local 
services. Where the County Council is unable to charge for services due to 
statutory restrictions, the County Council will continue to lobby the 
Government for legislative change; 

 maximise further income generation opportunities. 

7.7. The proposals set out in Appendix 1 have, wherever possible, been 
developed in line with these principles but inevitably the effect of 
successive reduction programmes over a 9 year period will begin to have 
an impact on the services that can be provided.

7.8. In some cases, the proposals in this report will be subject to further, more 
detailed public consultation if they are ratified by the Cabinet and Full 
Council in October and November respectively, at which the overall options 
for balancing the budget will be considered in light of the consultation 
results.

7.9. In addition to the consultation exercise, Equality Impact Assessments have 
been produced for all of the detailed savings proposals outlined in 
Appendix 1 and these have been provided for information in Appendix 2. 
These, together with the broad outcomes of the consultation, have helped 
to shape the final proposals presented for approval in this report.

8. Equality Impact Assessment
8.1. Appendix 2 contains the EIAs that have been completed for the Tt2019 

programme.  It should be noted that the EIAs are at this stage at a high 
level as each block of the saving proposals still have a lot of detail that 
needs to be worked through.  The Department would continually review the 
equality impacts of the individual initiatives to ensure that any emerging 
impacts are taken into account.

8.2. The EIAs show that the saving programme would have a high impact on 
older people and people with disabilities.  Some proposals would have a 
positive impact and, where possible, actions have been identified to 
mitigate against the negative impact and careful thought has been given to 
ensure that actions can be justified.

8.3. The main impacts and proposed mitigating actions under each block are 
set out below.

Page 24



.

Health and social care integration
8.4. The anticipated impact would be positive and would mainly benefit older 

people, people with life long conditions and people with disabilities. It is 
likely that people with long-term conditions would experience improved 
health related quality of life.  The changes should help older people to 
recover their independence more quickly after illness or injury and increase 
independence and self reliance so that people retain control of their lives.  
In the longer term these changes to lifestyle would aim to reduce premature 
and total mortality from the major causes of death and reduce the 
difference in life expectancy between people living in the least and most 
deprived areas.
Living (more) independently (older people and physical disabilities)

8.5. The main anticipated impacts are that some older people and people with 
physical disabilities may receive less support through purchased 
domiciliary, residential and nursing care as it is the department’s intention 
to reduce use of these routes.  People may receive less funded support 
and there would be greater expectations on families and communities to 
support older, vulnerable people.  There could be increased risk to the 
safety and wellbeing of vulnerable adults as less formal social care support 
would be provided.  Some people might need to contribute more to meeting 
the cost of the care and support they receive.

8.6. To mitigate against these potential negative impacts the Department would 
develop ways of working, including working with partners, that would 
increase or maintain people’s independence for longer through the use of 
their own resources, and that of their family/friends and their community. 
People would continue to only pay what they are assessed (using national 
rules) as able to afford to contribute towards their care costs.  This means 
that although an individual’s bill could increase to an extent, it would not be 
by more than they could reasonably expect to be able to afford based on 
their income and outgoings.
Learning disabilities, Children’s to Adults transitions, mental health 
and Social Inclusion

8.7. The main anticipated impacts are that fewer service users would be 
supported in residential care and day opportunities as these services would 
be reduced and alternative provision would be identified for the most 
vulnerable.  As part of the review of the services commissioned by the 
Department, some people may find that the services they access change, 
including day services and respite services.  For people attending day 
services this could mean they receive a different type of offer, or it is 
provided by a different organisation.  People in receipt of mental health 
aftercare under s117 Mental Health Act 1983, will continue to receive 
services free of charge.  There may be an increased emotional and 
financial strain on families and carers of adults with learning disabilities 
and/or mental health support needs.  

8.8. To mitigate against these impacts the Department would continue to 
ensure that packages of care are personalised to the needs of the 

Page 25



.

individual and that Direct Payments are actively promoted to maximise 
service user choice.  Where appropriate, people who are currently living in 
residential care settings may be supported and enabled to move to 
supported living environments, allowing them to exercise greater control 
and choice over their day to day lives.  Alternatively, working with them, the 
home owner, their family and carers their current residential care home 
may be converted into a supported living environment.  Alternative services 
would be made available to meet people’s needs for daytime activities.  As 
above, people will only pay what they are assessed (using national rules) 
as able to afford to contribute towards their care costs.  The department will 
continue to work with Children’s Services and related providers to manage 
costs and outcomes for young people transitioning to adult social care 
services.  A separate piece of work would focus on engaging with district 
council partners to redesign Social Inclusion services for people who are 
homeless or at risk of homelessness to release savings when the current 
service comes to an end in March 2019.
Working Differently

8.9. The main impact of these changes would be that there would be a 
reduction in the number of staff employed, as outlined in section 6 of this 
report.  At this stage it is not yet known which teams would be affected.  

8.10. The Department’s mitigating action would be to manage down staff levels 
in a planned and sensitive way through the use of managed recruitment, 
redeployment of staff where possible and voluntary redundancy where 
appropriate.

9. Conclusion
9.1. Inevitably, Tt2019 would involve complex transformational, policy and 

service change across the range of adult social care services in the context 
of an unrelenting business as usual agenda and a somewhat uncertain 
national picture.

9.2. Extensive public engagement and co-design of services would need to 
feature strongly and the Department would need to build on the work 
started in the past 18 months in terms of appropriately re-setting public 
expectations of the Department in the future, including changes to 
expectations of the way in which people’s needs are met.

9.3. None of what has been described above is straightforward or easy to 
deliver on because it would have happened by now if it were.  That said, 
there are a number of strong elements of the programme which would 
continue to have a positive and beneficial impact for clients.

10. Recommendation
10.1. To approve the submission of the proposed savings options contained in 

this report and Appendix 1 to the Cabinet.

Page 26



Integral Appendix A

.

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

yes

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

yes

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 27



Integral Appendix B

.

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

1. Equality Duty
1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act;
Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 
who do not share it;
Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
  The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 
relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;

  Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

  Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder:
2.1. The impact on crime and disorder is expected to be minimal, however, any 

specifically implications will be monitored with relevant partners as they arise.

3. Climate Change:
a) How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 

consumption?
There isn’t expected to a big impact on our carbon footprint or energy 
consumption, however, the Working Differently project will seek to further 
reduce unnecessary staff travel through better use of technology and other 
means.

b) How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate 
change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts?
No specific climate change adaptions have been identified.

Page 28



Appendix 1

.

Adults’ Health and Care – Proposed Savings Options (Subject to consultation where appropriate)

Expected Savings
Ref Service Area & 

Description of Proposal Impact of Proposal 2018/19
£’000

2019/20
£’000

Full Year
£’000

FTE 
Impact

B2

Health and Social Care 
Integration
Maintaining and 
integrating health and 
social care services for 
predominantly older 
people and clients in 
need of physical support.

The integration agenda will have a positive impact on service users 
who will receive a more joined up service; it will also reduce 
duplication within the health and care system.  Business areas 
associated with the following will be impacted; health related quality 
of life for long term conditions, older people after illness or injury and 
older persons’ independence.  Much of the change required is 
covered in other Tt2019 projects.  This funding is protecting social 
care services that otherwise would have to be reduced by 2019.

-   18,900 18,900 N/A

B3/ 
B4

Living Independently 
(Older People & 
Physical Disabilities)
To generate care models 
that increase service user 
independence which will 
reduce the number and 
financial value of care 
packages.  The 
contribution received 
from service users for 
their care and support will 
also be reviewed.

Potential service users will be diverted to non adult social care 
services to reduce the projected number of new clients by 
approximately 300 service users (links to demand management & 
prevention).  Existing clients will be targeted with interventions at 
appropriate times to avoid escalation of their level of need.  The 
strengths based approach from Tt2017 will continue and exploit new 
opportunities.  This should provide a better outcome for clients and 
change the profile of commissioned care with providers, including 
fewer service users requiring residential care.  Self-funding clients 
receiving care at home would see an increase in their charge by 
changes to the way provider costs are dealt with to take into account 
wider costs (ie bringing the payment by results element into the core 
price paid).  Consideration would be given to consult on the future of 
day services in favour of potential alternative and more 
individualised provision.  Consideration would be given to consult on 
proposals to increase the contribution from service users who are 
eligible to pay towards the cost of their care (mostly related to in-
house homes) – those financially assessed as unable to contribute 

7,628 14,276 18,366 N/A

P
age 29



Appendix 1

.

Ref Service Area & 
Description of Proposal Impact of Proposal

Expected Savings FTE 
Impact2018/19

£’000
2019/20

£’000
Full Year

£’000
or who are at their personal cap will not need to pay any more.

B5

Working Differently
This is a department wide 
project to reduce staff 
time spent on non-
statutory activity and 
increase staff productivity 
to create more efficient 
ways of working.

There would be a significant impact on staff due to reduced staff 
numbers over time, potential changes to the skill and capabilities 
mix and a move towards a more flexible workforce.  Increased 
productivity, more efficient processes, smarter working and 
exploitation of modern technology would all play their part in this.   
Specific operational teams and headquarters functions may become 
less flexible to respond to non-standard requests.  There would also 
be a greater reliance on service users and their families to be active 
participants in care assessment process.

-   2,935 4,052 
Circa 
150

(TBC)

B6

Learning Disabilities & 
Mental Health
To generate care models 
that increase service user 
independence to reduce 
the financial value of care 
packages.  There will 
also be some contract 
renegotiations and cost 
recovery through client 
contributions.

All current care packages would be reviewed to ensure they are 
appropriate and maximise new opportunities for independence.   
Many of the approaches to deliver cashable savings are extensions 
of tried and tested T17 initiatives.  The profile of commissioned care 
with providers would change as a result and provider rates would 
also be renegotiated, this would include fewer service users who 
require residential care.  Consideration would be given on the way in 
which respite provision is provided.

8,531 9,216 10,216 N/A

B7

Children’s to Adults
To engage earlier with 
young people who will 
transition from Children's 
Services to adult social 
care to encourage 
independence and 

There will be engagement with young people and their parents from 
the age of 14 to encourage them to retain and gain further 
independence through strengths based conversations.  This should 
provide a better outcome for clients and change the profile of 
commissioned care with providers.  Children's Services providers 
will adopt the South East region cost model that is already rolled out 
in adult social care Learning Disabilities; this may have an impact on 

800 1,600 2,400 N/A

P
age 30



Appendix 1

.

Ref Service Area & 
Description of Proposal Impact of Proposal

Expected Savings FTE 
Impact2018/19

£’000
2019/20

£’000
Full Year

£’000
enable lower cost care 
packages.

these providers.

B8

Social Inclusion
To work with district 
council partners to 
redesign Social Inclusion 
services for people who 
are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness to release 
savings when the current 
service comes to an end.

There will be engagement with district council partners to review the 
future provision and investment in services for those socially 
excluded.  The impact depends on the options selected after 
engagement and the level of joint investment.  However, it is likely to 
impact on how districts, boroughs, non-statutory and statutory 
agencies provide the service in future.  The level of service available 
may reduce resulting in fewer individuals being able to access the 
service.

- 2,000 2,000 N/A

  Total 16,959 48,927 55,934 150

P
age 31



.Page 32



 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Name of 
project/proposal

T19  Health & Social Care Integration 

Originator Ashton, Karen 
Email address Karen.Ashton@hants.gov.uk 
Department Adult Services 
Date of Assessment 31 Aug 2017 
 
Description of Service / Policy 
The Integration and Better Care Fund policy has been in place to accelerate the 
integration agenda for system partners, to transform care delivery and address the 
growing financial challenges across the whole of local health and social care economies. 
Initial agreed plan, assured by NHS England in December 2014, covered a five year 
timespan. Following announcements in the Chancellors Spring Budget in March 2017, 
additional resource has been made available to support social care services, social care 
providers and introduce schemes that reduce the pressures on the NHS related to social 
care particularly in respect of delayed transfers of care.  
Geographical impact* All Hampshire 
 
Description of proposed change 
Our vision for 2020, reflecting the assumptions and aspiration of the Integration and 
Better Care Fund policy framework is to transform local care services delivery; 
accelerate implementation of new models of care in each local system and address the 
issues that delay people from being transferred for acute hospital across a system of 
sustainable acute and mental health services. The intention is to use the resource to 
protect core adult social care services that would otherwise see their funding reduced.  
 
Engagement and consultation 
Has engagement or 
consultation been 
carried out?

Yes 

No specific consultation has been carried out on this proposal, however, the County 
Council carried out a major public consultation exercise over the Summer 2017 on a 
range of options for finding further budget savings including increasing council tax, 
using reserves and making changes to the way in which services are delivered, which 
may mean reducing or withdrawing certain services. The outcome of this consultation 
will be presented to Cabinet in October 2017. When decisions are made to pursue 
specific options, and further targeted consultation will be carried out with stakeholders 
on the detailed options where required. At the heart of each CCG system is a new 
approach to engagement with local people. In North East Hampshire for example a 
network of citizen leaders is being developed. 80 Community Ambassadors recruited to 
date, are being supported, developed and empowered to participate in the design of the 
new model of care. During 2016/17 additional ambassadors have been recruited to 
grow our Collaborative Trios programme (citizen leader, managerial leader and clinical 
leader work together at the heart of each component of the care model programme). 
Elsewhere focus groups, mid and large scale events and creative workshops are being 
used to enable a greater depth of engagement with local people 
 
Impacts of the proposed change 
This impact assessment covers Service users 
 
Statutory  Impact 

Page 33



considerations 
Age Positive 
Impact The New Models of Care Programme aims to ; build a 

extended joint out of hospital infrastructure that support self 
management, extend access to primary care, streamline 
access to acute care and reduce the number of steps to access 
specialist care. These changes will  
• Improve health related quality of life for people with long
term conditions; 
• Help older people to recover their independence more 
quickly after illness or injury. 
• Increase independence and self reliance so that people 
retain control of their lives 
 
In the longer term these changes to lifestyle will: 
• Reduce premature and total mortality from the major causes 
of death; 
• Reduce the difference in life expectancy between people 
living in the least and most deprived areas. 

 
Disability Positive 
Impact The New Models of Care Programme aims to ; build a 

extended joint outofhospital infrastructure that support self 
management, extend access to primary care, streamline 
access to acute care and reduce the number of steps to access 
specialist care.  
 
These changes will:  
• Improve health related quality of life for people with long
term conditions; 
• Help older people to recover their independence more 
quickly after illness or injury. 
• Increase independence and self reliance so that people 
retain control of their lives 
 
In the longer term these changes to lifestyle will: 
• Reduce premature and total mortality from the major causes 
of death; 
• Reduce the difference in life expectancy between people 
living in the least and most deprived areas. 

 
Sexual Orientation Neutral 
 
Race Neutral 
 
Religion and Belief Neutral 
 
Gender Reassignment Neutral 
 
Gender Neutral 
 
Marriage and civil 
partnership

Neutral 

 
Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Neutral  Page 34



 

 
Other policy considerations 
Poverty Neutral 
 
Rurality Neutral 
 
 
Additional Information 
  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Name of 
project/proposal

T19 Living independently 

Originator Cross, Ian 
Email address ian.cross@hants.gov.uk 
Department Adult Services 
Date of Assessment 08 Sep 2017 
 
Description of Service / Policy 
The county council provides support to older people and adults with physical 
disabilities. This support is delivered through the provision of domiciliary care, short 
term beds and respite care, supported living initiatives. Some recipients make a 
financial contribution to the cost of their care” 
Geographical impact* All Hampshire 
 
Description of proposed change 
The programme aims to reduce overall spend through the development of new services 
which will decrease the requirement for spending on traditional domiciliary care and 
prevent admission to long term residential or nursing care. It is designed to increase 
independence. It will also further embed the strength based approach to assessment so 
that those who need care do all that they are able and draw on support from family, 
friends, neighbours and local community services where appropriate. A fuller 
description of the changes are set out in the additional information section of this form. 
 
Engagement and consultation 
Has engagement or 
consultation been 
carried out?

Yes 

 
 
No specific consultation has been carried out on this proposal, however, the County 
Council carried out a major public consultation exercise over the Summer 2017 on a 
range of options for finding further budget savings including increasing council tax, 
using reserves and making changes to the way in which services are delivered, which 
may mean reducing or withdrawing certain services. The outcome of this consultation 
will be presented to Cabinet in October2017. When decisions are made to pursue the 
options, further specific consultation will be carried out with stakeholders on the 
detailed options where required. 
 
Impacts of the proposed change 
This impact assessment covers Service users 
 
Statutory 
considerations 

Impact 

Age Medium 
Impact Some older users may receive less service from Adults Health 

and Care. Some users may need to make a greater financial 
contribution to the services which they receive. 

Mitigation Some new services will deliver benefits to all age groups 
which balance the impact of lower levels of service in other 
areas. Financial Assessment assures that contributions are 
affordable for individuals with allowance being made for 

Page 37



 

additional costs of disability. 
 
Disability Medium 
Impact Some service users with physical disabilities may receive less 

service from Adults Health and Care. 
Mitigation New service developments such as increased availability of 

supported living, shared lives and Extra Care schemes will 
positively benefit users 

 
Sexual Orientation Neutral 
 
Race Neutral 
 
Religion and Belief Neutral 
 
Gender Reassignment Neutral 
 
Gender Neutral 
 
Marriage and civil 
partnership

Neutral 

 
Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Neutral 

 
Other policy considerations 
Poverty Neutral 
 
Rurality Positive 
Impact Development of a new framework for Care at Home will 

increase availability of service in rural "hard to reach" areas. 
 
 
Additional Information 
Living Independently in the Community is a transformation project which aims to 
deliver savings against current spending on older people and physical disabilities 
services by: 
 
• Reducing volume of domiciliary care purchased 
• Increasing reablement 
• Making better use of shortterm beds and respite care 
• Establishing a Joint Hospital Prevention Scheme 
• Developing Dementia Hubs and Day Services 
• Making increase use of Extra Care Housing 
• Increasing the number of Shared Lives services 
• Increasing the availability of Supported Living Opportunities for younger people with 
physical disabilities (PD) 
Making some increases to what some people contribute towards their care costs, to help 
us to recover more of the cost of delivering some of our services.  
 
The proposals identified at this stage may not fully deliver the savings required and 
work is being undertaken to identify further opportunities and to develop proposals to 
meet the gap between the current deliverable savings and the target that has been set. 
It should also be noted that delivery of some savings is dependent on the ability of the 
Demand Management and Prevention workstream to make available alternative 
community services and to ensure the sustainability of the significant contribution 

Page 38



made by unpaid carers to the care and support of vulnerable people. 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Name of 
project/proposal

T19 Adults Learning Disability & Mental Health 

Originator Gibson, Camilla 
Email address Camilla.Gibson@hants.gov.uk 
Department Adult Services 
Date of Assessment 08 Sep 2017 
 
Description of Service / Policy 
The County Council provides additional care funding for adults with learning difficulties 
and mental health needs which cannot be supported through universal services. Needs 
are identified through an assessment process which defines an individual’s support 
plan, personal budget and any financial contribution they are required to make. The 
council currently supports c 3400 care packages for these client groups. 
 
The proposal is to review all care packages, including aftercare delivered under s117 
Mental Health Act, to provide funding only where eligibility criteria has been met and 
ensure recipients make appropriate financial contributions to their support.  
Geographical impact* All Hampshire 
 
Description of proposed change 
 
The service provision delivered to people with learning disabilities, mental health and 
substance misuse needs will be reviewed, including transport, traditional respite 
services, day services and leisure activities in favour of voluntary community groups 
and self directed opportunities. 
These proposals are designed to deliver sustainable models of progressive care and 
supported living, which will increase independence, sense of wellbeing and significantly 
reduce use of residential care for people with learning disabilities and mental health 
conditions. These proposals will also reduce the costs of meeting eligible needs. 
 
Engagement and consultation 
Has engagement or 
consultation been 
carried out?

Yes 

No specific consultation has been carried out on this proposal, however, the County 
Council carried out a major public consultation exercise over the Summer 2017 on a 
range of options for finding further budget savings including increasing council tax, 
using reserves and making changes to the way in which services are delivered, which 
may mean reducing or withdrawing certain services. The outcome of this consultation 
will be presented to Cabinet in October 2017.  
 
When decisions are made to pursue the options, further specific consultation will be 
carried out with stakeholders on the detailed options where required. 
 
Impacts of the proposed change 
This impact assessment covers Service users 
 
Statutory 
considerations 

Impact 

Age Neutral 
 

Page 41



 

Disability Medium 
Impact People living in residential care may be enabled to move into 

supported living. People receiving intensive levels of care, 
could see the rollout of less intrusive/restrictive care models 
People with learning disabilities could receive lower levels of 
support or alternative support (telecare, voluntary sector 
support etc). People attending day services could receive 
different types of services, or services provided by different 
organisations. For people receiving 1:1 support to participate 
in leisure activities, levels or type of support may change. 
People using mental health services may see some support 
they receive through domiciliary care and direct support from 
mental health staff change. A separate piece of work will focus 
on engaging with district council partners to redesign Social 
Inclusion services for people who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness to release savings when the current service 
comes to an end in March 2019. As proposals are developed a 
separate EIA will be completed as the impact on different 
groups emerge. 

Mitigation The proposals are designed to promote independence where 
possible; learning disabilities day services may act as 
transitional, rather than longterm services; mental health 
teams will work with wellbeing centres to enable people 
become more independent. Packages of care will continue to 
be personalised to the needs of the individual and Direct 
Payments will be actively promoted to maximise service user 
choice. All assessments, reviews and support plans will be 
undertaken in accordance with Care Act guidance. We will try 
to ensure other agencies are delivering their statutory 
responsibilities / universal services eg clinical input, housing 
etc 

 
Sexual Orientation Neutral 
 
Race Neutral 
 
Religion and Belief Neutral 
 
Gender Reassignment Neutral 
 
Gender Neutral 
 
Marriage and civil 
partnership

Neutral 

 
Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Neutral 

 
Other policy considerations 
Poverty Neutral 
 
Rurality Neutral 
 
 
Additional Information 
  

Page 42



 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Name of 
project/proposal

T19  Working Differently 

Originator Burton, Michael 
Email address Michael.Burton@hants.gov.uk 
Department Adult Services 
Date of Assessment 08 Sep 2017 
 
Description of Service / Policy 
A number of transformation programmes are working on finding the savings needed to 
meet the Adults’ Health and Care (AHC) future budget allocation. The Working 
Differently programme has been tasked with working with the staffing budget across 
the department, with the exception of InHouse Services. C.1500 employees are in 
scope for this area of work, with an annual budget of £28m. Associated transport and 
premises costs of £3m will also be a focus. Savings will be made through a reduction in 
the workforce, premises and travel costs of the AHC Department. 
Geographical impact* All Hampshire 
 
Description of proposed change 
As a consequence of the proposals, if agreed, it is envisaged that there could be an 
overall reduction of the in scope AHC workforce in the region of 150 full time equivalent 
posts. The exact posts and teams potentially affected will not be known until significant 
further work is undertaken. Working Differently will involve changing how the 
department is organised and the way it works. The programme will simplify or stop 
tasks that are currently undertaken, wherever this is possible. New technology will be 
introduced and investment will be made to create the necessary changes. 
 
Engagement and consultation 
Has engagement or 
consultation been 
carried out?

Yes 

No specific consultation has been carried out on this proposal, however, the County 
Council carried out a major public consultation exercise over the Summer 2017 on a 
range of options for finding further budget savings including increasing council tax, 
using reserves and making changes to the way in which services are delivered, which 
may mean reducing or withdrawing certain services. The outcome of this consultation 
will be presented to Cabinet in October 2017. When decisions are made to pursue the 
options, further specific consultation will be carried out with stakeholders on the 
detailed options where required. 
 
Impacts of the proposed change 
This impact assessment covers HCC Staff (and partners) 
 
Statutory 
considerations 

Impact 

Age Medium 
Impact The demographic mix of departments workforce shows a 

higher number of older staff. Further work is required to 
identify who falls within the affected staff group this will clear 
after the analysis has been carried out. 

Mitigation Project will continue to review and update the EIA as and 
when it determines which staff members are to be affected. 

Page 43



Strategies used for previous restructures redundancy offers, 
managed recruitment and redeployment where possible will 
be used as necessary. Any future trade union consultation will 
be designed to ensure that all staff, taking into account their 
protected characteristic, are equally consulted on the 
proposals to come. 

 
Disability Medium 
Impact Relative to the Hampshire County Council average, the 

department includes a higher percentage of disabled staff 
than 
the County Council overall  

Mitigation Project will continue to review and update the EIA as and 
when it determines which staff members are to be affected. 
Strategies used for previous restructures redundancy offers, 
managed recruitment and redeployment where possible will 
be used as necessary. Any future trade union consultation will 
be designed to ensure that all staff, taking into account their 
protected characteristic, are equally consulted on the 
proposals to come. 

 
Sexual Orientation Neutral 
 
Race High 
Impact The affected group has a higher percentage of BME staff than 

the County Council overall 
Mitigation Project will continue to review and update the EIA as and 

when it determines which staff members are to be affected. 
Strategies used for previous restructures redundancy offers, 
managed recruitment and redeployment where possible will 
be used as necessary. Any future trade union consultation will 
be designed to ensure that all staff, taking into account their 
protected characteristic, are equally consulted on the 
proposals to come. 

 
Religion and Belief Neutral 
 
Gender Reassignment Neutral 
 
Gender High 
Impact Relative to the Hampshire County Council average, the 

department includes a higher percentage of female staff than 
the County Council overall. 

Mitigation Project will continue to review and update the EIA as and 
when it determines which staff members are to be affected. 
Strategies used for previous restructures redundancy offers, 
managed recruitment and redeployment where possible will 
be used as necessary. Any future trade union consultation will 
be designed to ensure that all staff, taking into account their 
protected characteristic, are equally consulted on the 
proposals to come. 

 
Marriage and civil 
partnership

Neutral 

 
Pregnancy and  Neutral 

Page 44



 

Maternity
 
Other policy considerations 
Poverty Neutral 
 
Rurality Neutral 
 
 
Additional Information 
If agreed, these proposals will create a significant impact on staff due to reduced staff 
numbers over time, potential changes to the skill and capabilities mix, changes to the 
daytoday work that people undertake and a move towards a more flexible workforce. 
Increased productivity, more efficient processes, smarter working and exploitation of 
modern technology will all play their part in this. Specific operational teams and 
headquarters functions may become less flexible to respond to nonstandard requests. 
There will also be a greater reliance on service users and their families to be active 
participants in care assessment processes. Given that the overall staff numbers will 
reduce there could be an impact on service users too. At this stage of the programme it 
is not yet known what service areas or client groups will be affected. As the detail is 
emerging more in depth EIAs will be carried out to identify the impact not only of staff 
but also on service delivery 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Executive Decision Record 

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 21 September 2017

Title: Appointments to Health Organisations (Outside Bodies)

Report From: Director of Transformation and Governance - Corporate 
Services

Contact name: Jackie Taylor

Tel: 01962 847479 Email: jackie.taylor@hants.gov.uk

1. Proposed Decision:

a) That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health be requested to make 
appointments to Health Organisations (Outside Bodies) as detailed below.  The term 
of office to expire in May 2021.

HEALTH ORGANISATIONS (OUTSIDE BODIES)

Name of body and number of 
representatives required

Previous 
Representatives

Appointment(s) until 
May 2021

Surrey & Borders Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust
1 Governor representative

Councillor Chadd

University Hospital 
Southampton NHS Foundation 
Trust
1 Governor representative

Councillor Gibson

2. Reason(s) for the decision:
2.1 To maintain County Council representation on committees and bodies within the 

community. 

3. Other options considered and rejected:
3.1. Not to make appointments, which would cease County Council representation. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 3



 
4. Conflicts of interest:
4.1. Conflicts of interest declared by the decision-maker: None

4.2. Conflicts of interest declared by other Executive Members consulted: None

5. Dispensation granted by the Conduct Advisory Panel: none. 

6. Reason(s) for the matter being dealt with if urgent: not applicable.

7. Statement from the Decision Maker: 

Approved by:

--------------------------------------------------

Date:

21 September 2017

Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health 
Councillor Liz Fairhurst 

Page 48



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Supportive Communities Grant Award
	2 Transformation to 2019 – Revenue Savings Proposals
	Tto2019 EIA Health & Social Care Integration - Appendix 2(1)
	Tto2019 EIA Living Independently - Appendix 2(2)
	Tto2019 EIA Adults Learning Disability & Mental Health - Appendix 2(3)
	Tto2019 EIA Working Differently - Appendix 2(4)

	3 Appointments to Health Organisations (Outside Bodies)
	5 Catering Service for Willow Court Nursing Home, Andover

